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OPINION AND ORDER

BY THE COMMISSION:

Before the Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (Commission) is a proposed Settlement Agreement (Settlement) filed on December 2, 2011, by the Commission’s Bureau of  Investigation and Enforcement (Prosecutory Staff or BI&E) and PECO Energy Company (PECO or Company). 


I.	Background

The Settlement was reached following Prosecutory Staff’s informal investigation into PECO’s conduct prior to and following a “low level explosion and house fire” at a residence (residence) in Swedeland, Montgomery County, Pennsylvania on December 26, 2009.  Settlement at 3.  An on-site inspection by the Commission’s Gas Safety Division Inspectors (Commission Inspectors) determined that the explosion was caused by “the complete circumferential crack resulting in the failure of the four-inch cast iron natural gas pipeline main serving structures in the vicinity” (four-inch main).  Id. at 5.  The gas main crack was near the joint of the service line in the rear of the residence, “sending gas laterally twenty-seven feet – up slope, and through the foundation wall of the crawl space,” resulting in the fire.  Id.  

Two days prior to the fire and explosion, on December 24, 2009, the local fire company was on the scene to investigate an odor of gas.  PECO was not informed of the fire department inspection until after the fire and explosion on December 26, 2009.  Also, on December 26, 2009, a call was made by the Montgomery County 911 Center to PECO’s call center regarding a house fire.  Initially, PECO was not advised that the fire was associated with PECO’s gas facilities.  Id. at 4.  

After the fire and explosion, PECO excavated and repaired a crack in the four-inch main, approximately thirty feet from the west wall of the residence.  Id.  A Commission Inspector arrived at 6:15 p.m. on December 26, 2009, and requested that PECO test the service line that connects the residence to a two-inch main (two-inch main) that runs perpendicular to the four-inch main.  PECO excavated and conducted a pressure test and determined that the service line was intact with no leaks.  Id. at 4-5.  

A second Commission Inspector joined the investigation on December 27, 2009.  The Commission Inspector noticed that PECO had drilled bar holes over the four-inch main, but not the two-inch main.  Id. at 5.  The Commission Inspector smelled gas in the area and his gas detection equipment detected gas in two manholes in the area.  He requested that PECO bar hole over the two-inch main and sample for gas.  PECO found a leak on the two-inch main due to corrosion of the bare steel main.  Id. at 5-6.  Based on these findings the Commission’s Gas Safety Division requested that the Commission’s Law Bureau[footnoteRef:1] investigate to determine whether the Company violated its tariff or the Public Utility Code.  Id. at 6.  [1: 	Effective August 11, 2011, the Commission’s Gas Safety Division and the prosecutory functions of the Law Bureau were transferred to the BI&E pursuant to the Commission’s reorganization.  See Implementation of Act 129 of 2008 Organization of Bureaus and Offices, Docket No. M-2008-2071852 (Order entered August 11, 2011). ] 


II.	History of the Proceeding

On or about November 1, 2010, the Prosecutory Staff formed an investigative team for the purpose of conducting an investigation.  Id. at 6.  Throughout the entire investigation, the Prosecutory Staff and PECO remained active in informal discovery and continued to explore the possibility of resolving this investigation through a settlement agreement.  Prosecutory Staff acknowledged that PECO complied with Prosecutory Staff’s requests for information and that PECO fully cooperated with this investigation. Id. at 9-10.  On December 2, 2011, the Prosecutory Staff and PECO filed the Settlement and a Joint Statement in Support of Settlement Agreement (Joint Statement).  Id. at 1. 

III.	Alleged Violations and PECO’s Position

As a result of its informal investigation, the Prosecutory Staff avers that if this matter had been litigated, it would have pursued the following violations of the Public Utility Code and the Code of Federal Regulations[footnoteRef:2] in that: [2:  	Section 59.33(b) of the Commission’s Regulations, 52 Pa. Code § 59.33(b), states “that the minimum safety standards for all gas transmission and distribution facilities in this Commonwealth shall be those issued under the pipeline safety laws as found at 49 U.S.C.A. §§ 60101-60503 and as implemented in 49 CFR Parts 191-193 and 199.” ] 


A. The Company failed to prepare and/or follow the necessary written procedures that are required to be set forth in a procedural manual for responding to an incident, including operations, maintenance, and emergencies, as more specifically set forth, [infra].  If proven, this would have violated 49 C.F.R. § 192.605. 

B. The Company failed to follow its procedures for identifying and classifying leak migration.  A day after the incident, an undocumented, ungraded leak existed directly in front of 604 Summit Street.  PECO personnel had not documented the extent of natural gas migration from either the four-inch main on Flint Hill Road or the two-inch main on Summit Street.  If proven, this would have violated 49 C.F.R. §§ 192.13(c) and 192.605.  

C. The Company failed to monitor for external corrosion. Specifically, 49 C.F.R. § 192.465(e) requires that after the initial evaluation required by §§ 192.455(b) and (c) and 192.457(b), each operator must, not less than every three years at intervals not exceeding [thirty-nine] months, reevaluate its unprotected pipelines and cathodically protect them in accordance with this subpart in areas in which active corrosion is found.  The operator must determine the areas of active corrosion by electrical survey.  However, on distribution lines and where an electrical survey is impractical on transmission lines, areas of active corrosion may be determined by other means that include review and analysis of leak repair and inspection records, corrosion monitoring records, exposed pipe inspection records, and the pipeline environment. In this section:

(1) Active corrosion means continuing corrosion which, unless controlled, could result in a condition that is detrimental to public safety.

(2) Electrical survey means a series of closely spaced pipe-to-soil readings over a pipeline that is subsequently analyzed to identify locations where a corrosive current is leaving the pipeline.

(3) Pipeline environment includes soil resistivity (high or low), soil moisture (wet or dry), soil contaminants that may promote corrosive activity, and other known conditions that could affect the probability of active corrosion. 

A review of PECO’s corrosion records shows that PECO was aware of more than twenty leaks in the area of the incident on Summit Street.  While PECO took corrective measures to resolve leaks on the two-inch main as they were discovered, PECO failed to take steps to remediate the underlying active corrosion problem.  PECO’s process for evaluating bare steel pipelines subject to the three-year evaluation did not successfully identify the corrosion that may have warranted a pipe replacement.  If proven, this would have violated 49 C.F.R. § 192.465.   

D. The Company failed to document actions taken during the incident.  If proven, this would have violated 49 C.F.R. § 192.13(c); 49 C.F.R. § 192.605.  

E. The Company failed to furnish and maintain adequate, efficient, safe and reasonable service and facilities in the provision of gas service.  If proven, this would have violated 66 Pa. C.S. § 1501.   

Id. at 7-9. 

In response to the alleged violations proffered by the Prosecutory Staff,  supra, PECO avers that, if the matter had been litigated, it would contend that its actions did not violate the Public Utility Code or federal law nor, if a violation was determined, that it should be fined or penalized for any offense.  Id. at 9. 

IV.	Terms of the Settlement

PECO and Prosecutory Staff state that they desire to terminate the informal investigation and settle this matter completely without further litigation.  PECO submits that although it may dispute or disagree with the allegations, supra, it fully acknowledges the seriousness of the allegations.  PECO also recognizes the need to prevent such violations and the benefits of amicably resolving these issues.  PECO and Prosecutory Staff intend to be legally bound and for consideration given and agree to stipulate to the following terms solely for the purposes of this Settlement:

A. PECO will, within sixty (60) days of the date of the Order approving this Settlement Agreement, retrain its emergency response crews to maintain written records during an incident and to perform additional bar hole testing to determine whether natural gas is migrating as a result of a pipeline failure.  PECO will revise its internal procedural manual to reflect this policy.

B. PECO will, within sixty (60) days of the date of the Order approving this Settlement Agreement, retrain its emergency response crews to assume in response to an incident where there is suspicion of an explosion, that natural gas is the primary source of the incident until proven otherwise and to proceed accordingly.  PECO will revise its internal procedural manual to reflect this policy.  

C. PECO will, within sixty days of the date of the Order approving this Settlement Agreement, retrain its emergency response crews to address 49 C.F.R. §192.615(a)(l-3), (5-7).  PECO will revise its internal procedural manual to reflect this policy. 

D. PECO will pay a civil settlement amount of thirty-five thousand dollars ($35,000) to resolve the alleged violations uncovered by this informal investigation. Said payment shall be made by check to “Commonwealth of Pennsylvania” and presented to the Commission within thirty (30) days of the date of the Order approving this Settlement Agreement.  

E. The Prosecutory Staff agrees not to institute any formal complaint relating to PECO’s gas service outage that is the subject of this Settlement Agreement. 

F. [The Parties also agree that] the terms and conditions in the Settlement Agreement cannot be used and will not be admissible in any future proceeding, including, but not limited to, the Commission, the Pennsylvania court system or the federal court system, relating to this or any other matter as proof of unlawful behavior, or as an admission of unlawful behavior by PECO.

Id. at 10-11. 

In addition, the Settlement states that in consideration of the Company’s payment of a civil settlement amount, Prosecutory Staff agrees not to initiate a formal complaint that relates to the Company’s conduct as described in the Settlement.  The Parties also agree that nothing contained in this Settlement shall adversely affect the Commission’s authority to receive and resolve any informal or formal complaints filed by any affected party with respect to the incident, except that no further civil penalties may be imposed by the Commission for any actions identified in the Settlement.  Id. at 11-12. 

V.	Discussion

The informal investigation was conducted pursuant to Subsection 331(a) of the Public Utility Code, 66 Pa. C.S. § 331(a), and Section 3.113 of the Commission’s Rules of Practice and Procedure, 52 Pa. Code § 3.113.  After the informal investigation, and in accordance with 52 Pa. Code § 3.113(b)(3), the Prosecutory Staff and PECO entered into negotiations which resulted in the proposed Settlement.  Prosecutory Staff and PECO jointly support the proposed Settlement and aver that the proposed Settlement is in the public interest and is consistent with our  Policy Statement at 52 Pa. Code § 69.1201 (Factors and standards for evaluating litigated and settled proceedings involving violations of the Public Utility Code and Commission regulations—statement of policy).  Joint Statement at 12.  Prosecutory Staff and PECO request that the Commission approve the Settlement as submitted.  Settlement at 3.

Pursuant to our Regulations at 52 Pa. Code § 5.231, it is the Commission’s policy to promote settlements.  However, the Commission must review proposed settlements to determine whether the terms are in the public interest.  Pa. PUC v. Philadelphia Gas Works, Docket No. M-00031768 (Order Entered January 7, 2004). Among the factors we will consider in our review of the proposed Agreement are the factors delineated in our Policy Statement at 52 Pa. Code § 69.1201. 

Under the Settlement, PECO has agreed to retrain its emergency response crews in several measures and pay a civil settlement of $35,000.  While the Prosecutory Staff and PECO request that we adopt the proposed Settlement as submitted, we believe that the nature of the incident and the alleged violations of federal and state gas safety regulations merit a greater penalty.  Of particular concern is the fact that PECO was aware of numerous leaks in the area but failed to take steps to remediate the underlying active corrosion problems.  Furthermore, PECO failed to follow its procedures for identifying and classifying leak migration and failed to document the actions taken during the incident.  Id. at 7.  We also note that a day after the incident, an undocumented, ungraded leak existed directly in front of the same residence that had just experienced an explosion and fire.  Id. at 6.  Although there were no injuries, there was property damage and the value of the property alone is estimated to have exceeded $150,000, not including the contents of the home and personal belongings.  Id. at 3-4.  

The Pennsylvania Legislature has entrusted the Commission with the important task of ensuring that our public utilities operate safely.  In consideration of PECO’s actions and the related circumstances, as presented in the Settlement, we believe that a civil penalty of $75,000 should be imposed in lieu of the $35,000 civil settlement amount proposed by the Prosecutory Staff and PECO.[footnoteRef:3]   [3:  	Section 3301(c) of the Public Utility Code, 66 Pa. C.S. § 3301(c), provided that any public utility that violates any gas safety provisions of the Code shall be subject to a civil penalty not to exceed $10,000 for each violation for each day the violation persists, and that the maximum civil penalty shall not exceed $500,000 for any related series of violations.  Act 11 of 2012 amended this Section to increase the maximum penalties to $200,000 for each violation for each day and $2,000,000 for any related series of violations.  Act 11 became effective on April 16, 2012. ] 


Before the Commission conducts a final review and rules on the Settlement, we must provide other potentially affected persons with the opportunity to submit comments thereon.  52 Pa. Code § 3.113(b)(3).

V.	Conclusion

Prior to issuing a decision on the merits of the proposed Settlement, and consistent with the requirements of 52 Pa. Code § 3.113(b)(3), we are providing an opportunity for interested parties to file comments on the proposed Settlement and our proposal to amend the Settlement to establish a civil penalty $75,000;  THERFORE,

IT IS ORDERED:

1. That this Opinion and Order, together with the attached Settlement Agreement and the Joint Statement in Support thereof, shall hereby be entered for comments by any interested party.

2. That a copy of this Opinion and Order, together with the attached Settlement Agreement and the Joint Statement in Support thereof, shall be served on the Office of Consumer Advocate and the Office of Small Business Advocate.
3. That comments on this Opinion and Order, together with the attached Settlement Agreement and the Joint Statement in support thereof, will be considered timely if filed within twenty (20) days of the date of entry of this Opinion and Order.

4. That, subsequent to the Commission’s review of the comments filed in this proceeding, a final Opinion and Order will be issued.

[image: ]
							BY THE COMMISSION,



[bookmark: _GoBack]							Rosemary Chiavetta
							Secretary

(SEAL)

ORDER ADOPTED:  May 24, 2012

ORDER ENTERED	   June 12, 2012


10




ATTACHMENT

































image2.emf



PENNSYLVANIA 
COMMONWEALTH OF PENNSYLVANIA 


PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 
P.O. BOX 3265, HARRISBURG, PA 17105-3265 


IN REPLY PLEASE 
REFER TO OUR FILE 
M-2011-2205782 


December 2, 2011 


Rosemary Chiavetta, Secretary 
PA Public Utility Commission 
P.O. Box 3265 
Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265 


Re: Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission Bureau of Investigation 
and Enforcement v. PECO Energy Company 
Docket Number M-2011-2205782 


Dear Secretary Chiavetta: 


Enclosed please find an original and three copies each of the Settlement 
Agreement and Joint Statement in Support to be filed in the above-captioned proceeding. 


Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact me. 


Sincerely, 


Michael L. Swindler 
Prosecutor 


Enclosures 


cc: Per Certificate of Service CO 
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SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 


I. Introduction 


1. The parties to this Settlement Agreement ("Settlement Agreement") are the 


Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission ("Commission") Bureau of Investigation and 


Enforcement ("Prosecutory Staff), by its counsel, P.O. Box 3265, Harrisburg, PA 


17105-3265, and PECO Energy Company ("PECO"), 2301 Market Street, Philadelphia, 


PA 19103. 


2. The Commission is a duly constituted agency of the Commonwealth of 


Pennsylvania empowered to regulate utilities within this Commonwealth pursuant to the 


Public Utility Code ("Code"), 66 Pa.C.S.A. §§ 101, etseg. 


3. Section 501(a) of the Code, 66 Pa.C.S.A. § 501(a), authorizes and obligates 


the Commission to execute and enforce the provisions of the Code. 


P30I214 
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4. The Commission has delegated its authority to initiate proceedings that are 


prosecutory in nature to the Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement and other bureaus 


with enforcement responsibilities. Delegation of Prosecutory Authority to Bureaus with 


Enforcement Responsibilities, Docket No. M-00940593 (Order entered September 2, 


1994), as amended by Act 129 of 2008, 66 Pa.C.S.A. § 308.2(a)(ll). Prosecutory Staff 


in this matter includes representatives of the Commission's Bureau of Investigation and 


Enforcement and the Commission's Gas Safety Division. 


5. Section 3301 of the Code, 66 Pa.C.S.A. § 3301, authorizes the Commission 


to impose civil penalties on any public utility or on any other person or corporation 


subject to the Commission's authority for violations of the Code or Commission 


regulations or both. Section 3301 further allows for the imposition of a separate fine for 


each violation and each day's continuance of such violation(s). 


6. Pursuant to the Commission's regulations at 52 Pa. Code § 59.33, the 


Commission's Gas Safety Division has the authority to enforce the federal gas pipeline 


safety regulations set forth at 49 U.S.C. §§ 60101, et seq., and implemented in 49 C.F.R. 


Parts 191-193 and 199. 


7. PECO is a jurisdictional natural gas and electric utility headquartered in 


Philadelphia, Pennsylvania. PECO is a public utility as defined by 66 Pa.C.S.A. § 102, 


holding Utility Certificate No. A-122300, and is engaged in, inter alia, the provision of 


public utility service for compensation as a natural gas distribution company. 
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8. PECO, as a provider of natural gas service for compensation, is subject to 


the power and authority of the Commission pursuant to Section 501(c) of the Public 


Utility Code. 


9. Pursuant to the provisions of the applicable Commonwealth statutes and 


regulations, the Commission has jurisdiction over the subject matter and the actions of 


PECO. 


10. As a result of negotiations between Prosecutory Staff and PECO 


(hereinafter "Parties"), the Parties have agreed to resolve their differences as encouraged 


by the Commission's policy to promote settlements. (See 52 Pa. Code § 5.231). The 


duly authorized Parties executing this Settlement Agreement agree to the settlement 


terms set forth herein and urge the Commission to approve the Settlement Agreement as 


submitted as being in the public interest. 


II. Background 


11. On December 26, 2009, at 2:55 p.m., the Commission's Gas Safety 


Division Chief, Paul Metro, was advised by PECO of an incident which took place earlier 


that day at 604 Summit Street in Swedeland, Montgomery County, PA. The property is 


located at the northeast comer of Flint Hill Road and Summit Street. Flint Hill Road is 


located in the north-south direction. 


12. The "incident" was comprised of a low level explosion and house fire. 


There were no personal injuries. However , there was property damage and the value of 
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the property alone is estimated to exceed $150,000, not including the value of the 


contents of the home or personal belongings. 


13. The original 911 call made to the PECO call center earlier that day by the 


Montgomery County 911 Center was with regard to a house fire, not a natural gas fire or 


explosion. Initially, PECO was not advised that the house fire was associated with 


PECO's gas facilities. Consequently, PECO did not contact the Commission upon its 


initial dispatch to the property. Upon subsequently determining the existence of a gas 


leak and possible explosion, PECO then promptly alerted the Commission's Gas Safety 


Division Chief. 


14. PECO excavated and repaired a crack in the four-inch cast iron main 


located on Flint Hill Road, approximately 30 feet from the west wall of the residence at 


604 Summit Street. A temporary asphalt patch (Patch 1) was placed over the excavated 


area. 


15. That same day, Commission's Gas Safety Division Inspector, Mr. Nguyen, 


arrived at approximately 6:15 p.m. 


16. During the incident investigation, a PECO manager, Mr. William Clark, 


informed the Commission's Gas Safety Office that the local fire department had been on 


scene on December 24, 2009 - two days prior to the incident now being investigated - for 


an odor of gas. Mr. Clark advised Inspector Nguyen that PECO had not been notified of 


the December 24 gas odor until the afternoon of December 26. 


17. Inspector Nguyen requested that the Company test the service line to the 


604 Summit Street residence. The service line connects to a two-inch main that runs 
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perpendicular to the four-inch main, and along Summit Street and approximately seventy 


feet from the front of the 604 Summit Street residence. PECO excavated and conducted a 


pressure test on the service line and found it to be intact with no leaks. A temporary 


asphalt patch (Patch 2) was placed over the excavated area. 


18. On December 27, 2009, Inspector Nguyen, was joined on-site by a second 


inspector, Mr. Bob Biggard. Inspector Biggard observed bar holes in pavement on Flint 


Hill Road but none on Summit Street. Inspector Biggard smelled gas odorant in the 


atmosphere at the intersection of Summit Street and Flint Hill Road near the bare steel 


main location. 


19. From the on-site inspection conducted by the Commission's Gas Safety 


Division Inspectors, it was concluded that there was in fact a link between the gas 


explosion and house fire. The inspection determined that the explosion was caused by 


the complete circumferential crack resulting in the failure of the four-inch cast iron 


natural gas pipeline main serving structures in the vicinity. The pipeline was operating at 


five pounds per square inch gage (5 psi) at the time of the incident. The gas main crack 


was inches from a joint and near the rear line of the residence, sending gas laterally 


twenty-seven feet - up slope, and through the foundation wall of the crawl space of the 


950 square foot one-story house, resulting in the fire. 


20. Inspector Biggard then utilized his gas detection equipment, GMI, and 


tested the manholes in between the service line and the curb to 604 Summit Street. The 


detection equipment discovered 3,900 parts per million of natural gas. 
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Inspector Biggard then switched detection modes on his GMI and discovered 4 LEL 


(Lower Explosion Limit) in the first manhole and approximately 6 LEL in the other 


manhole. 


21. Inspector Biggard then requested that the PECO crew on site near the gas 


main around the corner on Flint Hill Road be directed to bar hole over the two-inch bare 


steel main at Summit Street and sample for gas. 


22. PECO complied with Inspector Biggard's request and upon drilling found 


70% gas over one hole and 20% gas in other holes. At this time, PECO began excavation 


over the two-inch main. PECO found a leak on the two-inch main due to corrosion of the 


bare steel main and installed a clamp to stop the leak. A temporary asphalt patch (Patch 


3) was placed over the excavated area. Mr. Clark said the utility would classify the 


manhole leak as a 3 Leak and keep a man overnight to monitor the remaining residual gas 


in the grass portion near 604 Summit Street on an hourly basis. 


23. Based on these findings, the Commission's Gas Safety Division requested 


that the Commission's Law Bureau initiate an informal investigation to determine 


whether the Company violated its tariff or the Public Utility Code. Pursuant to this 


request, on or about November 1, 2010, the Law Bureau and the Gas Safety Division 


formed an investigative team, identified as Prosecutory Staff, for the purpose of 


conducting this investigation.1 


As set forth in Paragraph 4, supra. Law Bureau prosecutorial functions have since been transferred to the 
Commission's Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement. 
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24. Based on information obtained through this investigation, Prosecutory Staff 


was prepared to contend by the filing of a formal complaint that PECO violated 


provisions of the Public Utility Code and Code of Federal Regulations. 


III. Alleged Violations 


25. The Prosecutory Staff has reviewed the actions and business practices of 


PECO with respect to this investigation. If this matter had been litigated, the Prosecutory 


Staff would have alleged that PECO violated certain provisions of the Public Utility Code 


and Code of Federal Regulations in that: 


A. The Company failed to prepare and/or follow the necessary written 


procedures that are required to be set forth in a procedural manual for 


responding to an incident, including operations, maintenance, and 


emergencies, as more specifically set forth below. 


If proven, this would have violated 49 C.F.R. §192.605. 


B. The Company failed to follow its procedures for identifying and classifying 


leak migration. A day after the incident, an undocumented, ungraded leak 


existed directly in front of 604 Summit Street. PECO personnel had not 


documented the extent of natural gas migration from either the four-inch 


main on Flint Hill Road or the two-inch main on Summit Street. 


If proven, this would have violated 49 C.F.R. §192.13(c); 49 C.F.R. 


§192.605. 
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C. The Company failed to monitor for external corrosion. Specifically, 49 


C.F.R. § 192.465(e) requires that after the initial evaluation required by 


§§ 192.455(b) and (c) and 192.457(b), each operator must, not less than 


every 3 years at intervals not exceeding 39 months, reevaluate its 


unprotected pipelines and cathodically protect them in accordance with this 


subpart in areas in which active corrosion is found. The operator must 


determine the areas of active corrosion by electrical survey. However, on 


distribution lines and where an electrical survey is impractical on 


transmission lines, areas of active corrosion may be determined by other 


means that include review and analysis of leak repair and inspection 


records, corrosion monitoring records, exposed pipe inspection records, and 


the pipeline environment. In this section: 


(1) Active corrosion means continuing corrosion which, unless 


controlled, could result in a condition that is detrimental to public safety. 


(2) Electrical survey means a series of closely spaced pipe-to-soil 


readings over a pipeline that are subsequently analyzed to identify locations 


where a corrosive current is leaving the pipeline. 


(3) Pipeline environment includes soil resistivity (high or low), soil 


moisture (wet or dry), soil contaminants that may promote corrosive 


activity, and other known conditions that could affect the probability of 


active corrosion. A review of PECO's corrosion records shows that PECO 


was aware of more than 20 leaks in the area of the incident on Summit 
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Street. While PECO took corrective measures to resolve leaks on the two-


inch main as they were discovered, PECO failed to take steps to remediate 


the underlying active corrosion problem. PECO's process for evaluating 


bare steel pipelines subject to the three-year evaluation did not successfully 


identify the corrosion that may have warranted a pipe replacement. 


If proven, this would have violated 49 C.F.R. §192.465. 


The Company failed to document actions taken during the incident. 


If proven, this would have violated 49 C.F.R. §192.13(c); 49 C.F.R. 


§192.605. 


D. The Company failed to furnish and maintain adequate, efficient, safe and 


reasonable service and facilities in the provision of gas service. 


If proven, this would have violated 66 Pa.C.S. § 1501. 


26. If the matter had been litigated, PECO would have contended that its 


actions did not violate the Public Utility Code or federal law nor, if a violation was 


determined, that it should be fined or penalized for any offense. 


27. Throughout the entire investigatory process, the Prosecutory Staff and 


PECO remained active in informal discovery and continued to explore the possibility of 


resolving this investigation, which ultimately culminated in this Settlement Agreement. 


During the discovery process, PECO complied with Prosecutory Staff requests for 


information and documentation. Throughout the investigation, PECO and Prosecutory 


Staff maintained ongoing communications. 
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28. Prosecutory Staff acknowledges that PECO has fully cooperated with this 


investigation. 


IV. Settlement Terms 


29. PECO and Prosecutory Staff desire to (i) terminate Prosecutory Staffs 


informal investigation and (ii) settle this matter completely without further litigation. 


30. Although PECO may dispute or disagree with the allegations above, the 


Company fully acknowledges the seriousness of the allegations. PECO also recognizes 


the need to prevent such violations. Moreover, PECO recognizes the benefits of 


amicably resolving these issues. 


31. PECO and Prosecutory Staff, intending to be legally bound and for 


consideration given, desire to conclude this informal investigation and agree to stipulate 


as to the following terms solely for the purposes of this Settlement Agreement: 


A. PECO will within sixty (60) days of the date of the Order approving this 


Settlement Agreement retrain its emergency response crews to maintain 


written records during an incident and to perform additional bar hole testing 


to determine whether natural gas is migrating as a result of a pipeline 


failure. PECO will revise its internal procedural manual to reflect this 


policy. 


B. PECO will within sixty (60) days of the date of the Order approving this 


Settlement Agreement retrain its emergency response crews to assume in 


response to an incident where there is suspicion of an explosion, that 
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natural gas is the primary source of the incident until proven otherwise and 


to proceed accordingly. PECO will revise its internal procedural manual to 


reflect this policy. 


C. PECO will within sixty (60) days of the date of the Order approving this 


Settlement Agreement retrain its emergency response crews to address 49 


C.F.R. §192.615(a)(lM3), (5>(7). PECO will revise its internal procedural 


manual to reflect this policy. 


D. PECO will pay a civil settlement amount of thirty-five thousand dollars 


($35,000.00) to resolve the alleged violations uncovered by this informal 


investigation. Said payment shall be made by check to "Commonwealth of 


Pennsylvania" and presented to the Commission within thirty (30) days of 


the date of the Order approving this Settlement Agreement. 


E. The Prosecutory Staff agrees not to institute any formal complaint relating 


to PECO's gas service outage that is the subject of this Settlement 


Agreement. 


F. The terms and conditions in this Settlement Agreement cannot be used and 


will not be admissible in any future proceeding, including, but not limited 


to, the Commission, the Pennsylvania court system or the federal court 


system, relating to this or any other matter as proof of unlawful behavior, or 


as an admission of unlawful behavior by PECO. 


32. In consideration of the Company's payment of a civil settlement amount, as 


specified herein, Prosecutory Staff agrees to forebear the institution of any formal 
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complaint that relates to the Company's conduct as described in the Settlement 


Agreement. Nothing contained in this Settlement Agreement shall adversely affect the 


Commission's authority to receive and resolve any informal or formal complaints filed by 


any affected party with respect to the incident, except that no further civil penalties may 


be imposed by the Commission for any actions identified herein. 


VI. Applicability of the Commission's Rosi decision and its Policy Statement, 
Factors and standards for evaluating litigated and settled proceedings involving 
violations of the Public Utility Code and Commission regulations 


33. In Rosi v. Bell Atlantic Pennsylvania, Inc., et a l , 2000 Pa. PUC Lexis 5, 


Docket No. C-00992409 (Order entered February 10, 2000), and specifically 


Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission v. NCIC Operator Services, Docket No. M -


00001440 (Dec. 20, 2000), the Commission adopted a test for determining whether a 


particular enforcement outcome is in the public interest. The standards set forth in Rosi 


were reviewed by the Parties. The Parties submit that this Settlement Agreement 


conforms to the requirements for settlements found in Rosi and that the terms of the 


Agreement are in the public interest. 


34. The Parties further assert that approval of this Settlement is consistent with 


the Commission's Policy Statement, Factors and standards for evaluating litigated and 


settled proceedings involving violations of the Public Utility Code and Commission 


regulations - statement of policy, at 52 Pa. Code § 69.1201 ("Policy Statement"). Under 


the Policy Statement, while many of the Rosi standards may still be applied, the 


Commission specifically recognized that in settled cases the parties "will be afforded 
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flexibility in reaching amicable resolutions to complaints and other matters so long as the 


settlement is in the public interest." 52 Pa. Code § 69.1201(b). The Commission's 


Policy Statement provides for ten (10) factors and standards to be considered by the 


Commission. 


35. The first standard addresses whether the conduct at issue was of a serious 


nature. 52 Pa. Code § 69.1201(c)(1). While it has not been alleged that the conduct here 


involves willful fraud or misrepresentation, the internal operating procedures related to 


emergency response and the Company's actions with regard to corrosion detection may 


have been inadequate. 


36. The second standard addresses whether the resulting consequences of the 


conduct in question was of a serious nature. 52 Pa. Code § 69.1201(c)(2). While the 


consequences here did not include personal injury, the incident and resulting property 


damage is a serious consequence that could have possibly been avoided. 


37. The third standard addresses whether the conduct was intentional or 


unintentional. 52 Pa. Code § 69.1201(c)(3). Since this standard may apply to litigated 


proceedings, it is not applicable here. 


38. The fourth standard addresses whether the Company made efforts to 


modify internal practices and procedures to address the conduct at issue and prevent 


similar conduct in the future. 52 Pa. Code § 69.1201(c)(4). The Company is revising 


several internal operating procedures, as described above, so as to avoid recurrence of 


this kind of event. In addition, the Company informed the Commission during the 


Commission's June 2, 2011 Pennsylvania Gas Infrastructure Roundtable of PECO's 


13 






image16.emf



intention to accelerate the repair and replacement of the Company's highest priority gas 


infrastructure by substantially increasing its annual capital investment for infrastructure 


maintenance. The Company's commitment to accelerate the maintenance of its 


distribution system infrastructure is consistent with the Commission's charge to ensure 


that natural gas facilities in Pennsylvania are fully capable of providing safe and reliable 


service and facilities to their customers. As such, the Company is taking appropriate 


action to address infrastructure concerns and decrease the likelihood of similar incidents 


in the future. 


39. In the process of negotiating this Settlement Agreement, all of the other 


factors in the Policy Statement were considered. Specifically, the Parties reviewed the 


number of customers affected, which in this case was one customer, the compliance 


history of the Company the Company's cooperation with the Commission, and the 


amount necessary not only to deter future violations but to recognize alleged violations in 


the past. This Settlement Agreement was amicably negotiated and recognizes the 


Respondent's good faith efforts to comply with the Commission's regulations. 


40. The Parties submit that a settlement avoids the necessity for the prosecuting 


agency to prove elements of each violation. In return, the opposing party in a settlement 


agrees to a lesser fine or penalty. This settlement represents a compromise by both 


PECO and the Prosecutory Staff of their respective litigation positions. Any fines and 


penalties resulting from a litigated proceeding, such as Rosi, typically are different from 


those that result from a settlement. 
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41. The Settlement Agreement meets the standards set forth in the 


Commission's Policy Statement at 52 Pa. Code § 69.1201. The Parties submit that the 


Settlement Agreement is in the public interest because it effectively addresses the issues 


set forth in the letter complaint, avoids the time and expense of litigation which entails 


hearings, filings of briefs, exceptions, reply exceptions, and possible appeals. 


42. With the Commission's approval that the terms and conditions in this 


Settlement Agreement are in the public interest, PECO agrees to, among other terms set 


forth above, pay $35,000, within thirty (30) days of the date of the Order approving this 


Settlement Agreement, to resolve completely the allegations raised by the Prosecutory 


Staffs investigation. Moreover, PECO agrees not to seek recovery of any portion of this 


payment in future ratemaking proceedings. 


43. This Settlement Agreement is a full and final resolution of the Commission 


investigation, related in any way to the matters described in this Settlement Agreement. 


44. PECO and Prosecutory Staff have agreed to this amicable settlement in the 


interests of avoiding formal litigation and moving forward in the conduct of business in 


Pennsylvania. 


45. PECO and Prosecutory Staff have entered into and seek the Commission's 


approval of the Settlement Agreement pursuant to 52 Pa. Code §3.113. This Settlement 


Agreement is subject to all applicable administrative and common law treatments of 


settlements, settlement offers, and/or negotiations. The validity of this Settlement 


Agreement is expressly conditioned upon the Commission's approval under applicable 


public interest standards without modification, addition, or deletion of any term or 
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condition herein. Accordingly, this Settlement Agreement is made without any 


admission against or prejudice to any position which any party might adopt during 


litigation of this case if this settlement is rejected by the Commission or withdrawn by 


any of the parties as provided below. This Settlement Agreement is, therefore, a 


compromise and is conditioned upon the Commission's approval of any of the terms and 


conditions contained herein without modification or amendment. 


46. If the Commission fails to approve by tentative and final order this 


Settlement Agreement, or any of the terms or conditions set forth herein, without 


modification, addition, or deletion, then either Party may elect to withdraw from this 


Settlement Agreement by filing a response to the tentative or final order within twenty 


(20) days of the date the tentative or final order is entered. None of the provisions of this 


Settlement Agreement shall be considered binding upon the Parties if such a response is 


filed. 


47. This document represents the Settlement Agreement in its entirety. No 


changes to obligations set forth herein may be made unless they are in writing and are 


expressly accepted by the parties involved. This Settlement Agreement shall be 


construed and interpreted under Pennsylvania law. 


48. None of the provisions of the Settlement Agreement or statements herein 


shall be considered an admission of any fact or culpability. The Prosecutory Staff 


acknowledges that this Settlement Agreement is entered into with the express purpose of 


settling the asserted claims regarding the specific alleged violations of the Public Utility 


Code, Code of Federal Regulations and the regulations promulgated thereunder. 
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WHEREFORE, PECO and the Prosecutory Staff respectfully request that the 


Commission adopt an order approving the terms and conditions of this Settlement 


Agreement as being in the public interest. 


Respectfully Submitted, 


Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission 
Bureau of Investigation 
And Enforcement 


PECO Energy Company 


Michael L. Swindler 
Prosecutor 


Date: fl 


Jackie. Garfinkle 
Assistant General Counsel 


Date: /Oi^Ur lh{ Mt 
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Docket No. M-2011-2205782 


JOINT STATEMENT IN SUPPORT OF SETTLEMENT AGREEMENT 
OF PENNSYLVANIA PUBLIC UTILITY COMMISSION 
BUREAU OF INVESTIGATION AND ENFORCEMENT 


AND PECO ENERGY COMPANY 


The Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission Bureau of Investigation and 


Enforcement (Prosecutory Staff) and PECO Energy Company (PECO or "Company") 


(Collectively referred to as "Parties") submit this Joint Statement In Support Of 


Settlement Agreement at the above docket. The specific terms of the Settlement 


Agreement are found at Paragraphs 29 through 32 of the Agreement. The Parties submit 


that the settlement as memorialized by the Settlement Agreement balances the duty of the 


Pennsylvania Public Utility Commission (Commission) to protect the public interest, the 


Company, and the Company's customers. The Settlement Agreement addresses the 


allegations raised in Prosecutory Staffs informal investigation while avoiding the time 


and expense of litigation, including but not limited to, discovery, preparation of witness 
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testimony, hearings, briefs, exceptions and appeals. The Settlement Agreement, as 


proposed, is in the public interest and should be approved by the Commission. 


1. The proposed Agreement stipulates as to the following terms: 


A. PECO will within sixty (60) days of the date of the Order approving this 


Settlement Agreement retrain its emergency response crews to maintain 


written records during an incident and to perform additional bar hole testing 


to determine whether natural gas is migrating as a result of a pipeline leak. 


PECO will revise its internal procedural manual to reflect this policy. 


B. PECO will within sixty (60) days of the date of the Order approving this 


Settlement Agreement retrain its emergency response crews to assume in 


response to an incident where there is suspicion of an explosion, that 


natural gas is the primary source of the incident until proven otherwise and 


to proceed accordingly. PECO will revise its internal procedural manual to 


reflect this policy. 


C. PECO will within sixty (60) days of the date of the Order approving this 


Settlement Agreement retrain its emergency response crews to address 49 


C.F.R. §§192.615(a)(l)-(3), (5)-(7). PECO will revise its internal 


procedural manual to reflect this policy. 


D. PECO will pay a civil settlement amount of thirty-five thousand dollars 


($35,000.00) to resolve the alleged violations claimed as a result of this 


informal investigation. Said payment shall be made by check to 
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"Commonwealth of Pennsylvania" and presented to the Commission within 


thirty (30) days of the date of the Order approving this Settlement 


Agreement. 


E. The Prosecutory Staff agrees not to institute any formal complaint relating 


to PECO's gas service outage that is the subject of this Settlement 


Agreement. 


F. The terms and conditions in this Settlement Agreement cannot be used and 


will not be admissible in any future proceeding, including, but not limited 


to, the Commission, the Pennsylvania court system or the federal court 


system, relating to this or any other matter as proof of unlawful behavior, or 


as an admission of unlawful behavior by PECO. 


2. PECO has, as stated above, agreed to pay a fair and equitable civil 


settlement amount. This sum is in accord and satisfaction of disputed claims and is not 


an admission of liability of any sort by PECO. 


3. The agreement of the Parties to settle this case is made without any 


admission or prejudice to any position that the Parties might adopt during subsequent 


litigation, including but not limited to, the event that this settlement is rejected by the 


Commission or otherwise properly withdrawn by any of the Parties. 


4. Had this matter proceeded to hearing, Prosecutory Staff would have alleged 


that the Company committed numerous violations of the Public Utility Code and the 


Company would have contested these allegations. Specifically, Prosecutory Staff would 


have alleged in its case-in-chief as follows: 
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A. The Company failed to prepare and/or follow the necessary written 


procedures that are required to be set forth in a procedural manual for 


responding to an incident, including operations, maintenance, and 


emergencies, as more specifically set forth below. If proven, this would 


have violated 49 C.F.R. §192.605. 


B. The Company failed to follow its procedures for identifying and classifying 


leak migration. A day after the incident, an undocumented, ungraded leak 


existed directly in front of 604 Summit Street. PECO personnel had not 


documented the extent of natural gas migration from either the four-inch 


main on Flint Hill Road or the two-inch main on Summit Street. If proven, 


this would have violated 49 C.F.R. §192.13(c); 49 C.F.R. §192.605. 


C. The Company failed to monitor for external corrosion. Specifically, 49 


C.F.R. § 192.465(e) requires that after the initial evaluation required by 


§§ 192.455(b) and (c) and 192.457(b), each operator must, not less than 


every 3 years at intervals not exceeding 39 months, reevaluate its 


unprotected pipelines and cathodically protect them in accordance with this 


subpart in areas in which active corrosion is found. The operator must 


determine the areas of active corrosion by electrical survey. However, on 


distribution lines and where an electrical survey is impractical on 


transmission lines, areas of active corrosion may be determined by other 
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means that include review and analysis of leak repair and inspection 


records, corrosion monitoring records, exposed pipe inspection records, and 


the pipeline environment. In this section: 


(1) Active corrosion means continuing corrosion which, unless 


controlled, could result in a condition that is detrimental to public safety. 


(2) Electrical survey means a series of closely spaced pipe-to-soil 


readings over a pipeline that are subsequently analyzed to identify locations 


where a corrosive current is leaving the pipeline. 


(3) Pipeline environment includes soil resistivity (high or low), soil 


moisture (wet or dry), soil contaminants that may promote corrosive 


activity, and other known conditions that could affect the probability of 


active corrosion. PECO's process for evaluating bare steel pipelines 


subject to the three-year evaluation did not successfully identify the 


corrosion that may have warranted a pipe replacement. If proven, this 


would have violated 49 C.F.R. §192.465. 


The Company failed to document actions taken during the incident. If 


proven, this would have violated 49 C.F.R. 192.13(c); 49 C.F.R. 192.605. 


D. The Company failed to furnish and maintain adequate, efficient, safe and 


reasonable service and facilities in the provision of gas service. If proven, 


this would have violated 66 Pa.C.S. § 1501. 
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5. In Rosi v. Bell Atlantic Pennsylvania Inc., et a l , 94 PA PUC 103, Docket 


No. C-00992409 (Order entered March 16, 2000), as set forth in Pennsylvania Public 


Utility Commission v. NCIC Operator Services, Docket No. M-00001440 (December 20, 


2000), the Commission adopted and utilized standards for determining whether a 


particular enforcement outcome is in the public interest. The standards set forth in Rosi 


were reviewed by the Parties. The Parties submit that this Settlement Agreement does 


not violate the requirements for settlements found in Rosi and that the terms of the 


Settlement Agreement are in the public interest. 


6. The Parties further assert that approval of this Settlement Agreement is 


consistent with the Commission's Policy Statement, Factors and standards for 


evaluating litigated and settled proceedings involving violations of the Public Utility 


Code and Commission regulations - statement of policy, at 52 Pa. Code § 69.1201 


("Policy Statement"). Under the Policy Statement, while many of the Rosi standards may 


still be applied, the Commission specifically recognized that in settled cases the parties 


"will be afforded flexibility in reaching amicable resolutions to complaints and other 


matters so long as the settlement is in the public interest." 52 Pa. Code § 69.1201(b). 


The Commission's Policy Statement provides for ten (10) factors and standards to be 


considered by the Commission. The application of these standards and support for the 


instant settlement are set forth below. 


7. The first standard addresses whether the conduct at issue was of a serious 


nature. 52 Pa. Code § 69.1201(c)(1). The Prosecutory Staff deems the Company's action 


during a natural gas leak resulting in an explosion and fire to be of a serious nature. The 
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failure of PECO to conduct additional bar hole testing, to assume natural gas as the 


primary source of the incident until proven otherwise, and to maintain written records 


during the incident are deemed by Prosecutory Staff to be lapses in the Company's duty 


to furnish and maintain adequate, efficient, safe and reasonable service and facilities. 


8. The second standard addresses whether the resulting consequences of the 


conduct in question were of a serious nature. 52 Pa. Code § 69.1201(c)(2). Prosecutory 


Staff deems a natural gas leak allegedly resulting in an explosion and fire to be a serious 


event. 


9. The third standard addresses whether the conduct was intentional or 


unintentional. This standard is to be applied to litigated matters. Although there is no 


indication that the Company intentionally violated Company procedure or Commission 


regulations, this matter is being resolved by settlement of the parties and, as such, this 


standard is not relevant here. 


10. The fourth standard addresses whether the Company made efforts to 


modify internal practices and procedures to address the conduct at issue and prevent 


similar conduct in the future. 52 Pa. Code § 69.1201(c)(4). This has been addressed in 


the affirmative in the terms of settlement. The Company has already complied with 


Prosecutory Staff's requests to review and, where necessary, modify its procedures 


and/or retrain its workforce. The Company will retrain its emergency response crews to 


maintain written records during an incident and to perform additional bar hole testing to 


determine whether natural gas is migrating as a result of a pipeline leak. PECO will 


revise its internal procedural manual to reflect this policy. PECO will retrain its 






image27.emf



emergency response crews to assume in response to an incident where there is suspicion 


of an explosion, that natural gas is the primary source of the incident until proven 


otherwise and to proceed accordingly. PECO will revise its internal procedural manual to 


reflect this policy. PECO will retrain its emergency response crews to address 49 C.F.R. 


§§ 192.615(a)(l)-(3), (5)-(7). PECO will revise its internal procedural manual to reflect 


this policy. 


11. In the process of negotiating this Settlement Agreement, all of the other 


factors in the Policy Statement were considered. Specifically, Prosecutory Staff reviewed 


the number of customers affected, the compliance history of the Company, the 


Company's cooperation with the Commission, and the amount necessary not only to 


deter future violations but to recognize possible violations in the past. This Settlement 


Agreement was amicably negotiated and recognizes PECO's good faith efforts to comply 


with the regulations. 


12. The Parties submit that a settlement avoids the necessity for the prosecuting 


agency to prove elements of each violation. In return, the opposing party in a settlement 


avoids the possibility of a greater fine or penalty. Both parties negotiate from their initial 


litigation positions. The fines and penalties in a litigated proceeding, such as Rosi, have 


always been different from those that result from a settlement. The Parties submit that 


this is the reason that Rosi listed whether penalties arise from a settlement or a litigated 


proceeding as one of its tests. 


13. The Parties submit that the Settlement Agreement is in the public interest 


because it effectively addresses the allegations identified by the Commission's Gas 
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Safety Division, avoids the time and expense of litigation which entails hearings, filings 


of briefs, exceptions, reply exceptions, and possible appeals. The Company has also 


agreed to pay a fair and equitable civil settlement amount and to improve its customer 


call response procedures. Moreover the Settlement Agreement clearly meets the 


standards set forth in the Commission's Policy Statement at 52 Pa. Code § 69.1201. 


14. Commission Rules and Regulations encourage the settlement of proceedings 


and, consequently, Prosecutory Staff and PECO convened frequent and extensive 


conferences and discussions during the course of this proceeding. These discussions 


ultimately resulted in the foregoing Settlement Agreement which is a full and final 


resolution of the Commission's investigation. The Parties assert that approval of this 


settlement is consistent with the Commission's Policy Statement at 52 Pa.Code § 


69.1201, Factors and standards for evaluating litigated and settled proceedings involving 


violations of the Public Utility Code and Commission regulations - statement of policy. 


15. In addition to the foregoing reasons, based upon the Parties' analysis of 


these matters, acceptance of this proposed settlement is in the public interest because 


resolution of this case by settlement rather than litigation will avoid the substantial time 


and expense involved in continuing to formally pursue all allegations in this proceeding. 


Moreover, acceptance of the Settlement Agreement at this time will ensure that the 


Company will immediately implement the changes in their policies enumerated in the 


Settlement Agreement, including retraining staff and revising internal management 


procedures, instead of at the end of what could be protracted litigation. 
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WHEREFORE, Prosecutory Staff and PECO represent that they support the 


settlement of this matter as memorialized by the Settlement Agreement as being in the 


public interest and respectfully request that the Commission approve the foregoing 


Settlement Agreement, including all terms and conditions contained therein. 


Respectfully submitted, 


Dated: November 29, 2011 


Wayne T. Scott, First Deputy Chief Prosecutor 
Michael L. Swindler, Prosecutor 
Bureau of Investigation and Enforcement 


Jaclo'R/ Garfinkle 
Asgsiant GeneraltCounsel 
PECO Energy Company 
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CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE 


I hereby certify that I am this day servicing the foregoing Settlement Agreement 
and Joint Statement in Support, upon the person(s) listed and in the manner indicated 
below: 


Notification by first-class mail addressed as follows: 


Jack R. Garfinkle 
Assistant General Counsel 
Exelon Business Services Company 
2301 Market Street 
Philadelphia, PA 19103 


Michael L. Swindler 
Prosecutor 
PA Attorney ID No. 43319 
(Counsel for the Pennsylvania Public 
Utility Commission) 


P.O. Box 3265 
Harrisburg, PA 17105-3265 
(717) 787-5000 


Dated: December 2, 2011 # 
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